
Addendum #2 to Request For Proposal 

 

#0037 DPS Custodial and Cleaning Supply Services 
 

February 18, 2021 

QUESTION AND ANSWER SESSION RESULTS: 
 

1. Who is the incumbent contractor and how long have they been providing their services? See attached 
2019 contract.  More than 10 years, exact date is unknown.  Information exceeds record retention 
requirements. 
2. What is the current contracted monthly price and yearly price? See attached 2019 contract. 
Is it special pricing under Covid situation or regular contracted price? No special pricing in 2019.  See 
attached 2019 contract. 
If you pay special rate for Covid, can you provide both the special rate and regular contracted price? Not 
applicable.  
3. Can you provide the contract price if it has been increased for the past years? See attached 2019 
contract and terms of increases in contract.  
4. Can you provide us with the bid tab sheet form the last bid opening?  
Not available.  Previous bid exceeds record retention requirements. 
5.  Is the scope/size of this bid identical with the current contract? Please compare 2019 contract to the 
RFP.  Many things are being changed and added.Have there been any changes from the previously 
awarded contract to current request for bid? See answer above.Are there any significant changes from 
the last bid?See answer above. 
6. Why did these facilities come up for bid at this time.? Additional services and service options being 
considered.  
 7. What is the service hours for day porter's services and night shift? Both varies as needed by DPS see 
RFP package.  Basic hours are 6am – 2 pm and 2pm and 12pm as events effect schedules and work 
hours.   
8. Can you provide the current number of staffing- Day Porter, night shift, driver etc?  Info provided in 
RFP. 
9. Can you provide the flooring type breakdown of all locations? Carpet, Concrete, VCT, Tile, etc.? 
We do not have this information. A pre bid walkthrough is offered for the contractors.   
10. Who is responsible for providing event set up and post event cleaning if you have?Info provided in 
RFP. 
11. Can a breakdown by building of estimated number of events per year that the contractor will need 
to set up by provided if you have under normal situation? Event information is publically available on 
the DPS website at www.DaltonPublicSchools.com  
Can you provide the number of average events was occurred for the past year prior to 
Covid?Unknown.  Individual schools schedule their own events.  Many events were canceled this school 
year.  See Dalton Public Schools Website at www.DaltonPublicSchools.com for publically available Event 
Information.    
12. Will the extra charge be applied for out- sourced events for the leased out facility use?Companies 
responding to the RFP determine how they would like to charge for their services.  The RFP indicates 
that DPS has the right to adjust custodial schedules to cover events at the regular rates charged by the 
companies responding to this RFP.  See RFP for details. 
13. Will it be awarded a single bidder or multiple bidders? Info in the RPF. 

http://www.daltonpublicschools.com/
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14. Prior to commencement of subsequent renewal terms, will your agent consider a request for price 
adjustments in accordance with the current National Consumer Price index or the increased minimum 
wage of State? Info in the RFP.  
15. Is  Exterior Window Cleaning a part of this contract? Info in the RFP. 
16. The qualification that we have an issue with is qualification number 2 that’s found on page 7 of the 
RFP. Can you provide further details as to why this is a qualification? This qualification in this RFP limits 
the small businesses that are new to government contracting that are trying to bid on larger contracts 
with Dalton Public Schools and it limits the new small businesses that are trying to help provide jobs for 
those in the community. Thank you for your inquiry.  Dalton Public Schools is a city school district with 
nearly 9,000 persons to service under this Request for Proposals.  If you feel that you have the capacity 
to meet our size and needs, then by all means apply.   
17. Will the contractor be allowed to train employees on-site prior to the start date of July 1,2021? We 
will work with the winning bidder however and transition cost must be included in the their bid pricing 
and detailed in their bid package for consideration. 
Will there be a transition period with the incumbent for a seamless process? See answer above 
We are Covid-19 cleaning and disinfecting providers (with the latest industry equipment), will that be a 
service needed or if and when an occurrence should happen it will be outsourced? We have a company 
that provides a 90 day spray service under contract.  Daily cleanings are currently the responsibility of 
regular custodial services. 
18. Please provide the previous bid tabulations & itemized award information.  None available.  Previous 
bid exceeds record retention requirements. 
19. Is the pre-bid meeting mandatory if we are only bidding on supplies, not services? It’s not 
mandatory.   
20. Will our proposal be considered for award if we are only bidding on supplies? Unknown. RFP must be 
approved by Dalton Board of Education.        
21. How many locations will be utilizing the supply portion of this awarded contract? All locations as 
listed in the RFP 
22. Does each location have a loading dock and/or forklift? No 
23. Please provide detailed specs for the toilet paper, paper towels and both sizes of can liners (to 
include dimensions, gauges and color). I do not have this information.  Products vary and change based 
on pricing.  Please bid based on what you will provide with a standard school setup.   
24. How often are orders placed and in what quantities?  Orders are placed to as needed throughout the 
year.  Annual quantities are listed in the RFP. 
25. Southeastern Paper Group was interested in bidding on the cleaning supplies Only of this bid.  Is that 
possible or are you looking for a cleaning contractor to be able to supply those supplies to you as well? 
You are welcome to offer supplies only.     
26. Can a current contract and pricing for this bid be released? Attached is the previous contract.  Please 
note the new RFP has significant changes from the past agreement.  Be sure you read the RFP closely.   
27. Section V (4) talks about a “Pre-Proposal” meeting. Was that Meeting attendance required to bid on 
this project? Attendance was not required. 
 28. List of Items, Schedule of Requirements, Scope of Work, Terms of Reference, Bill of Materials 
required. See attached RFP for questions.  
29. Soft Copy of the Tender Document through email. See attached RFP for questions. 
30. Names of countries that will be eligible to participate in this tender. See attached RFP for questions. 
31. Information about the Tendering Procedure and Guidelines See attached RFP for questions. 
32. Estimated Budget for this Purchase Publicly posted on Procurement website. 
33. Any Extension of Bidding Deadline? See attached RFP for questions. 
34. Any Addendum or Pre Bid meeting Minutes? See attached RFP for questions. 
35. Also we would like to be informed of future tenders from your organization. Hence, we request you 
to add our name to your bidder's list and do inform us about upcoming Projects, Tenders. We do not 
keep a bidder’s list for future projects. 



36. What days of service are involved w this bid? Varies with school hours and events.    
37. Does the work involve any weekend coverage needs? Yes, Varies with school hours and events 
38. Who is the current vendor? Southern Janitorial Services Corp.  
39. Is sub-contracting allowed? No 
40. What is the current monthly invoice amount? Varies with number of workers and amount of 
supplies needed. 
41. Will NorthStar remain inhouse throughout this bid term?  Northstar is not currently included in this 
contract, subject to change. 
42. Pg 18, is this staff listed just the evening staff?  Attachment C on page 18 lists all current full time and 
part time staff being used, this is subject to change. 
43. Vacuum cleaners- Can you let us know the size? 12 inch brush Does it need to be HEPA?  Yes, or 2 
filer equivalent.  Do you have a specific make and model and/or would an equivalent be accepted? 
Equivalents acceptable  
44. Ride on Vacuum-Do you have a specific make and model and/or would an equivalent be accepted? 
Equivalents acceptable  
45. Propane burnisher-size, features Equivalents acceptable  
46. Toilet paper - Is there a specific brand and item number? Contractor to provide Can we bid 
alternative? Alternative acceptable.  
47. Paper Towels - Is there a specific brand and item number?  Contractor to provide Can we bid 
alternative? Alternative acceptable. 
48. Soap for dispensers - Is there a specific brand and item number?  Contractor to provide Can we bid 
an alternative? Alternative acceptable. 
49. Large can liners - Can you specify the color, size, and thickness? 38” x 58” 4 micron, Contractor to 
provide 
50. Small can liners -Can you specify the color, size, and thickness? 24 inch 4 micron, Contractor to 
provide 
51. All purpose Cleaner Gallons - Can you specify the brand and item number? Contractor to provide 
Does it fit a specific dispenser? Contractor to provide 
52. All purpose Cleaner liters - Can you specify the brand and item number? Contractor to provide 
Does it fit a specific dispenser? Contractor to provide 
53. Bathroom Cleaner - Can you specify the brand and item number? Contractor to provide  
Does it fit a specific dispenser? Contractor to provide 
54. Floor Cleaner Liter - Can you specify the brand and item number? Contractor to provide 
Does it fit a specific dispenser? Contractor to provide 
55. Floor Cleaner Gallons - Can you specify the brand and item number? Contractor to provide 
Does it fit a specific dispenser? Contractor to provide 
56. Cleaning cloths - Would you know the material like, microfiber, cotton etc...? Contractor to provide 
Do you have a color preference? Contractor to provide  
57. Paper dispenser - Would you have the brand, item number and color? Contractor to provide 
58. Soap dispensers - Would you have the brand, item number and color? Contractor to provide 
59. After we reviewed the bid we noticed that it is a janitorial services bid with product included. Is this 
correct? We ask because we are a janitorial supply company only. We service Fulton county, Forsyth 
county and Gwinnett county. In all of these counties we just provide product. We are asking this to 
make sure before we attend the walk through tomorrow. Thank you so much and haver a great day.  
You can bid either service or both  
60. Let me know if I can bring some samples  Let me know if I can drop these samples by next 
Wednesday or Thursday.  Thank you for consideration for our custodial and supplies RFP.  We look 
forward to reviewing products after the conclusion and awarding of the RFP.  Again, thank you for your 
understanding as we are asking that all vendor with product offerings to contact us post bid award date 
of March 9, 2021.     



61. Do you have a round about number of GOJO soap dispensers you guys have on the walls? We do not 
have a count of the number of dispensers we have.  
62. Can you disclose who your current contractor is and how long they have had the contract? Southern 
Janitorial Services.  Unknown, Contract service years exceed retention record keep requirements.  
63. Also do they also supply the consumables or do you order from a separate vendor? Currently a 
separate vendor supplies the consumables.  The RFP is written to accommodate both sole contractors or 
multi-contractors.  All vendors accepted will have direct contracts with Dalton Public Schools, No 
subcontractors.    
64. Is there a bid bond and if so what is the requirement? Not at this time.  Those are required on public 
works construction projects over $100K but this does not fall into that category. 
65. Who currently provides your consumables? Imperial Dade, for the item listed in the RFP. 
66. Are they the same for every location? Yes, for the items listed in the RFP 
67. Can you provide item #’s of the consumables you are using? Let me investigate further, but I don’t 
believe we track that information.  I will send a second email if I find any data on this. 
68. What kind of cleaners are you using? All purpose, neutral cleaners and disinfectants and hand 
sanitizers? The goal of the RFP we to see your expertise and for you to offer your brands and product 
knowledge.  See bid sheet.  Please only bid the items listed in the RFP.  
69. Do you have floors plans or a breakdown of floor type for each location?  We do not maintain floor 
plans with flooring types.   
70. How many district hours did custodians accrue for special events? We do not track that information 
as events are random, often rescheduled, or cancelled as needed.  Custodial Workers normally cover 
these events with their other duties as assigned.  
71. Do you have a schedule of 2021-2022 events? The 2021-2022 school schedule is not completed.  A 
2020-2021 school schedule is provided in the RFP for reference.  Event schedules are posted on the DPS 
website and are subject to change regularly.    
72. Do you have the sign up sheet to share from the pre-bid conference? Yes, it will be posted as an 
addenda after the question and answer session has been completed. 
73. Do you have a list of the current staff and their pay rates? The current janitor contract is attached. 
74. You mentioned you will have leads/supervision at every school, plus 3 area supervisors, is this 
correct? Glenn Shults is over all the custodial staff.  We also have a lead custodian at each school.  There 
are also a couple of DPS custodians at DHS and DMS.  However, please read the RFP very carefully 
because the current setup may change depending on how the contractor can meet the schools listed 
needs in the RFP.    
75. DO we need to provide Account Management and front-line cleaners?  I don’t understand how this 
relates to the RFP.  Clarify question or review the RFP for what we are asking for in the bid?    
76. What time are your leads/supervision at school?  6am-2:30pm   
77. If leads are working during 8am to 5pm, then we will need a lead/supervisor during evening 
cleaning.  I do not know if you will need a lead or if your afternoon staff can meet the requested needs 
without one.  This is for your team to decided.  As discussed in the meeting, we provided the services we 
need in the RFP.  We are asking vendors to give us there expertise to determine the best way to meet 
our needs with the parameters given.  
78. SOW: Clean carpet to remove all stains, spills, and soiled spots – Do you mean to spot clean the 
carpet that has the stains, spills and soiled spots or are you meaning clean the entire carpet by hot 
water extraction?  I believe the portion of the RFP were this is taken from is discussing Spot clean.  
79. paper towels.  I need to know if it’s a “Y” notch on the ends of the paper towel rolls or an “I” notch. 
We have 3 notch dispenser for paper towels.  
80. What is the current contract term with Spectra Carpet Cleaning?  Year to year pricing.   For 
clarification, their contract calls for carpet cleaning twice per year, correct?  No, classrooms 3 times per 
year, hallways 2 times per year 
81. What is the current number of District employees who work 250 days? See attachment in bid sheet 
for staff and each location.  



82. What are the lunch times for Dalton High School? Varies with schedules each year 
83. Will you send a copy of the vendor sign in sheet? It will be posted at a later date 
84. Will the district provide office space for a manager? None available 
85. Will the district provide warehouse space for supplies and equipment? No 
86. Will pricing be read aloud at the bid opening? No 
87. Is the District expecting to receive proposals by email and hard copy? Information provided in RFP 
documents.  
88. How many CPI's have been granted to the incumbent the last (3) years? 1 to the best of my 
knowledge.  Previous contract under different terms. 
89. Equipment pricing (page 28).  The monthly and annual pricing for equipment should include all our 
necessary equipment to meet the districts scope, correct? Yes 
90. Cleaning Supply and Material (page 29).  Should we expand the Product list to include other supplies 
we deem necessary to meet the scope of work if it is not listed? No 
91. Will the District permit a provision allowing for increases in price by ABM for other factors beyond 
ABM’s reasonable control, including but not limited to, government increases to minimum, prevailing or 
living wages, benefits, or healthcare, and increases required by collective bargaining agreements, if 
applicable? No. See RFP documents.  Contractors must bid the RFP and its subsequent addenda(s) as 
presented.  
92. Will the District permit a provision allowing for increases in price at the end of each 12 months based 
on the greater of 3% or the annual Consumer Price Index for All Urban Consumers (CPI-U) increases not 
to exceed 5%? No. See RFP documents.  Contractors must bid the RFP and its subsequent addenda(s) as 
presented.  
93. Will the District permit a provision allowing a mutual termination for convenience upon 120 day 
written notice prior to end of fiscal school year?  No. See RFP documents.  Contractors must bid the RFP 
and its subsequent addenda(s) as presented. 
94. Will the District accept ABM’s indemnification obligation, limitation of liability and warranty as set 
forth in the attached Contract and to only claims caused by the negligence, misconduct, or other fault of 
ABM, its agents and employees, and which arise out of work performed under this Contract. No. See RFP 
documents.  Contractors must bid the RFP and its subsequent addenda(s) as presented.   
95. Will the District allow slight adjustments to the insurance requirements, which do not reduce the 
amount of coverage but rather restructure the language to comply with ABM’s insurance policies. No. 
See RFP documents.  Contractors must bid the RFP and its subsequent addenda(s) as presented.    
96. Does the District want vendors to submit a copy of their standard agreement as an exhibit in their 
proposal response? No. See RFP documents.  Contractors must bid the RFP and its subsequent 
addenda(s) as presented. 
97. One of our first goals coming in would be to retain all current staff that DPS is pleased with and 
would like for us to keep on. It would be very helpful if we could get some information as far as their pay 
rates go. I don’t necessarily need a breakdown per person, though I certainly wouldn’t mind that, but it 
would be a lot of help if you happen to know what the current start rate is and maybe just a few of the 
outliers such as legacy staff and supervisors. This information has been requested from HR.  I do not 
have a time frame for a response and cannot guaranty it will be available by bid time Feb 22nd.  I believe 
a detail would be obtainable before the contract begins July 1st.  
98. Background checks: Do you require background checks to be done through the school system or do 
we use our own and forward for approval? Contractors will provide the background checks to for their 
workers to DPS.  We cover background checks only for those employed directly with DPS. 
99. Office Space: Do you have an office and/or warehouse space that you would be providing for us? 
Assume No, for Bid purposes. 
100. Would it be possible to take about 5 minutes of your time to discuss dispensers and products for 
both the Hammond Creek and existing locations? I think we can save you a good deal, as well as 
providing you with an upgraded and better looking product. I have attached a flyer showing some of 
what we would like to offer, and just wanted a chance to discuss it further with you. Thank you for 



inquiring about our supply needs.  While the RFP is in progress, DPS will only accept written 
questions.  After the bid ends Feb 22, 2021, future product offers may be presented.  You are all 
welcome to bid the supply portion of the RFP only if that is a service you provide.   Attached is the RFP. 
101. Is there a previous bid Tab for this solicitation? 
I don’t understand the question?  The bid is not over until Feb 22nd so there would be no bid tab 
produced yet.  
102. Will there be a public opening of hardcopy proposals on the 22nd? Normally we have a public 
opening then everyone is asked to leave for the committee to meet and evaluate the offerings.  
However, with Covid-19 cases at its height in our county, we may offer a video call only.  If we offer a 
video call, those who have provided emails will receive a calendar invite to attend the video call.  
103. The locations below are to be included in our pricing, correct? 104 Fort Hill Terrace 67,361 N/A 20 1 
– PT   NorthStar 307 Fredrick St 32,954 30 15 Northstar in house  For the purposes of the RFP: Yes, on Ft 
Hill  No, on NorthStar 
104. To clarify, Ft. Hill and MIHS are the same location, correct? If so, you say below to include Ft. Hill, 
but it will shut down August 2021 so should we include it because it adds ~68k to square footage price? 
FT Hill and MIHS are the same schools.  The building will need to continue to be cleaned as Central 
Office may move to this location.  It is undecided at this time.  For the purposes of the RFP bid this as an 
active facility.  
105. Is DPS requiring all FT employees work 250 days per year, as excellent results can be achieved 
without all FT employees working 250 days? For RFP bid purposes proceed at 250 days.  If Dalton Public 
Schools decides to make a change, it will be posted in an addenda after the question and answer session 
is completed. 
106. Do you have a bid tabulation with the previous bid awards available? Previous documentation 
exceeds recording keeping requirements. 
107. Currently at City Park, we have 4 part time folks that come in after school and clean all the 
classrooms.  The RFP didn’t have them listed that I can see…just wanted to make sure we account for 
them.  Also, I’m wondering if the custodians at DMS might be reversed.  Right now there are 4 full-time 
and 6 part time, the RFP says 6 full time and 4 part time?  Just want to make sure I get it correct. The 
RFP staff list includes all staff for both DPS and contract custodial labor.  City Park does have 3 - Part 
Time workers but the rest are correct as listed in the RFP based on future facilities to open for the 2021-
2022 school year.  
108. The RFP states each school should have a minimum requirement of 2 Day Porters each. I know 
during the Pre Bid the current staffing was brought up, pertaining to Day Porters specific. If I’m correct, 
You said that current staffing listed ,included  1 full time day, (Lead Person), that would be provided by 
the schools. Would we be responsible for covering that person in our pricing? Or do we need to price 2 
day Porters minimum ,for our service quote, in addition to that one lead person? Dalton Public School is 
relying on the contractor to provide staffing sufficient to meet or exceed all the duties listed in the 
RFP.  Our current custodial staffing was provided as a frame of reference only. 
109. On the Proposal Pricing form. “Custodial and cleaning Supply Services” -Custodial Services- You’re 
asking for pricing based on staffing, per Month and per year, and additional rates for substitute cleaners, 
and emergency clean upon request. And Exterior window cleaning , as well as pressure washing.? All the 
items listed above are detailed as separate items on the RFP bid sheet.  Window cleaning is for Exterior 
only on the Bid sheet line item.  Interior windows are listed in the day porter’s duties in the 
RFP.  Pressure washing in not listed in the Day Porter’s duties in the RFP.  It is listed on the Bid sheet 
with a description line.  Those offering pressure washing services may provide that option and offer 
their pricing for this item.  
110. Equipment pricing? My question is to price that with the equipment list you provided? What if we 
felt we needed more than listed? Pricing not included in the Custodial Service pricing? Dalton Public 
Schools provided a list in the RFP of what we currently use for example purposes only.  DPS will no 
longer maintain equipment.  It will be up to the contractor to supply sufficient equipment to maintain 
the schools services needed as listed in the RFP. 
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111. Cleaning supply and Material Pricing- I believe that’s pretty clear. We submit a price here for 
Supplies, that’s not included in our Custodial Services pricing, based on the usage you provided?  Yes, 
Supplies, Equipment, Custodial Services, etc. should be separate items as listed on the bid sheet.  
112. I also think there was something said that we could include a Total Monthly/Annual price , to 
include Services, Equipment, and supplies ? Is that correct? You may write in additional alternative 
pricing however the bid sheet must be completed for items you would like to be considered for.  
113. Consumables, can you clarify a few specs/preferences? Toilet Paper – Jumbo roll or household 
(regular) roll - Regular 
114. Can Liner Sizes - You list small & large can liners, but large can range from 45-60 gallon and small 
can be 24x24, 24x33, etc… Do you have specifics on this?  Otherwise we can list viable options. Small 
24”x 32”  Large 38” x 58” 
115. Soap & Dispensers - Any preference or sticking point on liquid vs foam?  Foam 
116. All equipment is to be supplied by contractor, correct?  YES, contractor to supply equipment. 
Amounts listed in RFP are for reference only – they will not be staying on property after a transition. 
117. Do you a price for the building beside Hammond Creek School. Is it the (Junior 
Achievement Building). Does it need to be on the contract list? 
Custodial, equipment and supply services being provided for Hammond Creek Middle will service all 
buildings on the campus which would include the JA Building owned by Dalton Public Schools.  This 
holds true for all school properties and the structures on those properties. 
118. Can you attach a copy of the Nov and Dec invoices that you received from your vendor…. for 
personnel and then supplies? I do not keep that information on my computer and we are closed today 
due to inclemently weather.  This information will be provided after the close of the question and 
answer session. 
119. Is sub-contracting allowed? No 
120. Is the work currently sub-contracted? No 
121. Is the sq footage that is shown on pg. 18, the gross sq ftge…or cleanable sq ftge? This is an estimate 
of the campus sq ft. structures to be cleaned.  It is only a estimate.  Those providing services for this RFP 
must clean all structures on all campuses listed in the Attachment C. 
122. Are you charged for supplies separately?  Yes, you may bid all the services or separate services. 
123. Can you provide additional information about consumable items? Yes 
124. What type of toilet paper dispensers are in use? Tork Is it single roll or Jumbo? Regular Single Roll. 
Can you provide the current brand and model number? Tork, Model unknown, supplied by current 
vendor, picture to be provided in Addenda(s) after Question and Answer session ends. 
125. What kind of  Paper towers and dispensers are in use? Bay West Can you provide the current brand 
and model number? Bay West Model unknown, supplied by current vendor, picture to be provided in 
Addenda(s) after Question and Answer session ends. 
126. Towel dispensers - are they touchless automatic or manual? Manual  If it is touchless, who provides 
the batteries? N/A 
127. What kind of  soaps and dispensers are in use? Gojo Can you provide the current brand and model 
number? Gojo, Model unknown, supplied by current vendor, picture to be provided in Addenda(s) after 
question and Answer session ends. 
128. For chemicals, do you use dispensers? Yes  If you do, can you provide the chemical & dispenser 
information? Dispenser: Spartan Clean on the go lock and dial.   Chemical: Damp Mop - mopping, NABC - 
bathroom cleaner, Smoke and Odor Eliminator - Tropical Mist - scent, Spartan Bio Renewables Glass 
Cleaner - glass cleaner HdqC2 If dispensers needed to be replaced, do you install it?No 
129. I guess the consumable product quantities provided are current usage not including New HCM. 
Consumable product quantities on the Bid Sheet of the RFG are current usage only.  HCM is currently in 
the punchlist stage of construction.    
130. Would you confirm that we need to add product for New HCM?Yes 



131. Vacuum Cleaners - 72 - Are these vacuums for all schools? Yes, but Dalton Public Schools 
equipment will not be available for contractor use.  The RFP requires the contractor to supply their own 
equipment. 
132. Ride on Vacuum  - 2 in use ( DHS, DJH, New HCM) - 2 are at each school? No, 2 total.  DPS 
equipment will not be available for contractor use.  The RFP requires the contractor to supply their own 
equipment.  
133. 2 Propane Floor Buffers -(DHS, DMS, & HCM) - 2 are at each school? No, 2 total.  DPS equipment 
will not be available for contractor use.  The RFP requires the contractor to supply their own equipment. 
134. Do you have any more Floor Buffers at any other locations? No, DPS equipment will not be 
available for contractor use.  The RFP requires the contractor to supply their own equipment. 
135. On Pricing form, asking Equipment prices - can you provide brand & Model and age of the machines 
to predict the replacement? Contractor will replace all equipment.  DPS equipment will not be available 
for contractor use.  The RFP requires the contractor to supply their own equipment. 
Vacuum cleaner - Are those all up-right or Back pack Vaccums are included? Contractor will replace all 
equipment.  DPS equipment will not be available for contractor use.  The RFP requires the contractor to 
supply their own equipment. 
136. If we replace the equipment unit, school pays for the purchase price? Contractor will replace all 
equipment.  DPS equipment will not be available for contractor use.  The RFP requires the contractor to 
supply their own equipment.  Contractor will need to include this cost in their price. 
137 Equipment Pricing: Are you asking equipment cost only for the items listed? Dalton Public Schools is 
asking contractors to provide all equipment needed to sufficiently cover all the cleaning requirements in 
the RFP.  Contractors will determine what they need to do the work.  The list is only a guide for what 
Dalton Public Schools is currently using for the work being currently required.   
138. Equipment Pricing: Do we need to include replacement cost?  Contractor will replace all 
equipment.  DPS equipment will not be available for contractor use.  The RFP requires the contractor to 
supply their own equipment.  Please fill out the Bid Sheet in the RFP completely for all items you wish to 
bid.  
139. Equipment Pricing: How can we estimate the replacement without knowing the condition of the 
machine? Contractor will replace all equipment.  DPS equipment will not be available for contractor use.  
The RFP requires the contractor to supply their own equipment. 
140. Do we need to include other equipment, such as Floor machines, etc?? Contractor will replace all 
equipment.  DPS equipment will not available for contractor use.  The RFP requires the contractor to 
supply their own equipment. 
141. Question: where do we put prices for any other items not listed but needed for cleaning? 
Contractors who wish to bid the supply portion of this RFP must bid only those items listed on the bid 
sheet.  Additional items may be purchased by Dalton Public Schools outside the supply contract or from 
the winning contractor all at Dalton Public School’s choosing. 
142. Page 28 of the RFP, “Proposal Form” asks for labor information then a price for that labor per 
month and per year. Since we are submitting a fully comprehensive program that includes all costs: 
supplies, consumables, equipment, labor, recruiting, training, custodial management technology, 
employee incentives, employee benefits, current subcontractor costs related to custodial services 
and much more including the labor on this page. May we supply a separate page outlining the total 
per month price and annual price for the entire program with more clarification than the form allows? 
Dalton Public Schools requires the Bid Sheet in the RFP be completed by the contractor for all items 
the contractor wishes to be considered for.  Additional information may be provided, but the Bid 
Sheet in the RFP must be complete for consideration. 
143. Do you have the scope for window washing and pressure washing i.e. is it just sidewalks, entire 
building siding, every building? All outside windows, all outside drives, sidewalks, and structures, 
however an hourly rate and per sq. ft. pricing is desirable. Since the scope is not in the RFP and 
could vary, may we submit an hourly price or square footage price for these services? Yes If not, can 
we please get a more defined scope and scale for each? Hourly rate and Per sq. ft. pricing is 
desirable. 



144. For the equipment, consumable and supplies cost, we are submitting our sales price and brand. 
However, our program includes all supplies and equipment in our total cost. Are you wanting us to 
sell you equipment? No, Dalton Public Schools is requiring individual pricing on all custodial, 
equipment and supply services the contractor(s) is providing on the Bid Sheet in the RFP.  Dalton 
Public Schools requires the Bid Sheet in the RFP be completed by the contractor for all items the 
contractor wishes to be considered for.  Additional information may be provided, but the Bid Sheet in 
the RFP must be complete for consideration. 
145. When will answers to questions be posted? The date in the RFP will be corrected by addenda.  
However, DPS doesn’t have a new date yet.  DPS will post Q and A session results before the 72 
hour window noted in the bid documents. 
146. The RFP calls for 2 day porters per school, mandatory.  Of all addresses listed, we believe only these 
locations would qualify for that standard, would you be able to verify? (highlighted below) No, 
Contractor to determine their cleaning abilities to meet the RFP work requirements requested. 
 

Facility Name Address 

Blue Ridge ES 100S Bogle St 

Brookwood ES 501 Central Ave 

City Park ES 405 School St 

Annex at CP 105 N Thornton Ave 

Park Creek ES 1500 Hale Bowen 

Roan St ES 1116 Roan St 

Westwood ES 708 Trammel St 

  

Dalton High School* 1500 Manly St 

The Dalton Academy** 1250 Cross Plains Trail 

Dalton Jr High*, *** 1250 Cross plains Trail 

Hammond Creek Middle 330 Pleasant Grove Dr 

  

101 Building Enrollment 101 N Thornton Ave 

201 building Tech 201 E Franklin St 

412 Building M&O 412 S Hamilton St 

Commodities Food 
Service 

114 Mason Dixon Alley 

Harmon Field* 601 Vernon Ave 

Ft Hill 104 Fort Hill Terrace 

NorthStar 307 Fredrick St 

 
123. I was looking at this section of the RFP regarding the minimum day porters in each school.  We 
should disregard and continue with our estimates for accurate work load & labor force? 



 
Contractor’s should allocate custodial staff based on workload and needs requested in the RFG with a 
minimum for 2 day porters for every school.  The ones “hi-lited” below (above) are the only school 
buildings on the list. 


